1 Museum of Ventura County
100 E. Main St.
The Museum celebrates the history and culture of Ventura County with special exhibitions, programs, and events. George Stuart Historical Figures bring world history to life, and the Museum Research Library is a treasure trove of photographs, books, and documents relating to this region.

2 Mission Gardens & Moor Bay Fig Tree
On Main St. between Figueroa St. & Ventura Ave.
This land was once the Old Mission Gardens, surrounded by tall adobe walls, boasting a lion’s head fountain, and cultivating some of the first orange trees grown in California. The Moor Bay Fig tree, located west of Figueroa Plaza, was planted in the 1800s.
(Cross Main St)

3 Mission Plaza Archaeological Site
113 E. Main St. (Allinger Archaeological Museum, Valdez Adobe, and El Calabozo)
The Allinger Archaeological Museum was named for long-time Ventura Mayor Al Allinger and built on the site of a saloonkeeper and early mayor Angel Escondido. To the west of the museum is a walkway called Valdez Alley, where the 1820 Ramon Valdez adobe once stood. The adobe served as the first polling place where all nine eligible voters cast their ballots for Abraham Lincoln in 1860. Farther up the hill on Valdez Alley is a little Mission-era brick building and fountain called “El Calabazo” (the box), after the shape of its water spout. The building was part of a seven-mile aqueduct system developed by the Spanish Padres and constructed by Chumash labor in the 1760s and early 1800s.
(Paused at Main St.)

4 San Buenaventura Mission
211 E. Main St. & Figueroa St.
San Buenaventura Mission is the tenth in the chain of 21 missions and the last one founded personally by San Juan Capistrano Serra on Easter Sunday, March 31, 1782. The Mission’s first church building was destroyed by fire. In 1792 work was in progress on the present church made of stone, adobe, and adobe. The church’s walls are 12 feet thick. The Mission Museum highlights mission artifacts such as Chumash baskets and mysterious wooden bells. In the Church garden can be found the almost life-size statue of San Juan Capistrano. The Mission’s two Norfolk Island Pines, planted in the 1800s, were designated California’s Millennium Landmark Trees in 2000. In 1799 San Juan Capistrano Serra and his companions headed northward from Mexico and founded Mission San Diego. This unjustified missionary freed wholeheartedly his metzis. Nineteen attitudes. Always go forward. Never turn back.
(Cross at north side of Main Street)

5 Pienaar’s Market* and Mission Lavadeneria
204 & 208 E. Main St.
Converted into Jonathan’s Restaurant in 1998, Pienaar’s Market was Ventura’s first commercial brick building, constructed in 1877 for Italian merchant Antonio Gaddolli, nephew of Pietro Pienaar who took over the store in 1890 and the store remained in the family until the late 1980s. The murals on the west outside wall are typical of commercial advertising in the late 19th and early 20th centuries. In 1992, archaeologists discovered an elaborate Mission-era “lavadeneria” (laundry) with a 20’ x 30 foot washing pool under the building, constructed by Chumash mission converts as part of the aqueduct system during the early 1800s.
(Paused at Market St.)

6 Chauncey Site
On the northeast side of the Clock Tower Inn facing the plaza rose garden, is the chauncey Fire Museum. This small exhibit portrays the history and growth of Ventura’s Fire Department, including the Chinese Fire Company which operated in Ventura for nearly 30 years.

7 Chauncey Hall
Figueroa St. Plaza.
This building, constructed as a motion picture house in 1927, was called the Mission Theater. It was taken over by the Knights of Columbus in the 1950s and was slightly altered in 1976.

8 The Clock Tower Inn
181 & 185 E. Santa Clara St.
Built in the 1930s as a fire station, the building has been converted into a restaurant and hotel. The tower’s purpose was to dry fire hoses.

9 A.J. Comstock Museum
Figueroa St. Plaza.
This fine two-story house, built in 1912, shows many characteristics of the Victorian period of 1860 to early 1900s.

10 Chauncey Hall
111 E. Santa Clara St.
This fine two-story house, built in 1912, shows many characteristics of the Victorian period of 1860 to early 1900s.

11 Historic Walking Tour Guide
Downtown Ventura
Sponsored by the Ventura Visitors and Convention Bureau, Museum of Ventura County, Downtown Ventura Organization, San Buenaventura Mission, and the City of Ventura Community Partnerships Division.
17 Bank of Italy
594 E. Main St.
Built in the popular Beaux-Arts style (Italian Renaissance Revival), this 1924 two-story bank was built for John Lagunamarso, Sr. and designed by a top Los Angeles architectural firm, Morgan, Wall and Clements. Marble bas-relief representing a number of architectural styles from the Spanish "Churrigueresque" style. (Proceed east on Santa Clara Street)

18 El Jardin Patio*
451-461 E. Main St.
The first movement to create a shopping environment began in Southern California in the 1920s – it was a movement that would end the elaborate shopping malls of today. Built in 1925, El Jardin Patio was designed by the Los Angeles architectural firm of Weber, Stauton, and Spaulding. (Proceed across Santa Clara Street)

19 Norton Ranch House
71 N. Palm St.
This 1910 Craftsman-style house once stood on a 40-acre walnut farm on Beisler Blvd. It was moved to this location, restored in 1990 and designated a historic landmark in 1998. This house was linked to the prominent Chaney, Callens, Vanoni, Ramelli, and De Silva families over the years.

20 Hartman Residence
73 N. Palm St.
Mr. Fredelin Hartman, a native of Bavaria, Germany, operated a profitable brewery for many years on this site. He built this Craftsman-style home for his family in 1911. Gayle Kieran was the prominent Chaney, Callens, Vanoni, Ramelli, and De Silva families over several times. Directly south of the park, on Thompson Blvd., stands the Historic Mitchell Block of eight homes representing a number of architectural styles from Victorian to Craftsman. (Proceed across Santa Clara Street and enter the US Post Office)

21 El Nido Hotel*
67 S. California St.
Built in 1927 by the county Courthouse architect Albert C. Martin, this Spanish Colonial Revival hotel was named "El Nido" (The Nest). Its most outstanding feature is the cast stone frieze in the Spanish "Churrigueresque" style. (Proceed east on Santa Clara Street)

22 Hotel Farnam
540 E. Santa Clara St.
Built in 1926, this fanciful Normen revival building does its best to create the impression of a French chateau with steep-pitched roofs, turrets, and decorative brickwork. (Proceed south to Santa Clara Street to Plaza Park)

23 Moreton Bay Fig Tree
Plaza Park corner of Santa Clara & Chestnut Streets
Planted in 1874, this giant tree provided shade for band concerts, political rallies, and war bond drives during WWI. The park was laid out in 1866 and re-landscaped several times over the years.

24 The Ventura Theater*
26 S. Chestnut St.
Built in 1928 in the Spanish Colonial Revival style, the Ventura Theater is the county's only Great Movie Palace. Vaudeville shows necessitated dressing rooms and a lofty scene dock to make it a fully functional theater. The lobby is decorated with cosmic fixtures. Under the 40-foot auditorium dome hangs a magnificent chandelier surrounded by a styled silver sunburst design. (Proceed north on Chestnut Street)

25 The Ventura Theater*
26 S. Chestnut St.
Built in 1928 in the Spanish Colonial Revival style, the Ventura Theater is the county's only Great Movie Palace. Vaudeville shows necessitated dressing rooms and a lofty scene dock to make it a fully functional theater. The lobby is decorated with cosmic fixtures. Under the 40-foot auditorium dome hangs a magnificent chandelier surrounded by a styled silver sunburst design. (Proceed north on Chestnut Street)

26 El Nido Hotel*
67 S. California St.
Built in 1927 by the county Courthouse architect Albert C. Martin, this Spanish Colonial Revival hotel was named "El Nido" (The Nest). Its most outstanding feature is the cast stone frieze in the Spanish "Churrigueresque" style. (Proceed east on Santa Clara Street)

27 The Ventura Theater*
26 S. Chestnut St.
Built in 1928 in the Spanish Colonial Revival style, the Ventura Theater is the county’s only Great Movie Palace. Vaudeville shows necessitated dressing rooms and a lofty scene dock to make it a fully functional theater. The lobby is decorated with cosmic fixtures. Under the 40-foot auditorium dome hangs a magnificent chandelier surrounded by a styled silver sunburst design. (Proceed north on Chestnut Street)

28 El Nido Hotel*
67 S. California St.
Built in 1927 by the county Courthouse architect Albert C. Martin, this Spanish Colonial Revival hotel was named "El Nido" (The Nest). Its most outstanding feature is the cast stone frieze in the Spanish "Churrigueresque" style. (Proceed east on Santa Clara Street)

29 El Nido Hotel*
67 S. California St.
Built in 1927 by the county Courthouse architect Albert C. Martin, this Spanish Colonial Revival hotel was named "El Nido" (The Nest). Its most outstanding feature is the cast stone frieze in the Spanish "Churrigueresque" style. (Proceed east on Santa Clara Street)

30 Hotel Farnam
540 E. Santa Clara St.
Built in 1926, this fanciful Normen revival building does its best to create the impression of a French chateau with steep-pitched roofs, turrets, and decorative brickwork. (Proceed south to Santa Clara Street to Plaza Park)

31 Norton Ranch House
71 N. Palm St.
This 1910 Craftsman-style house once stood on a 40-acre walnut farm on Beisler Blvd. It was moved to this location, restored in 1990 and designated a historic landmark in 1998. This house was linked to the prominent Chaney, Callens, Vanoni, Ramelli, and De Silva families over the years.

32 Hartman Residence
73 N. Palm St.
Mr. Fredelin Hartman, a native of Bavaria, Germany, operated a profitable brewery for many years on this site. He built this Craftsman-style home for his family in 1911. Gayle Kieran was the prominent Chaney, Callens, Vanoni, Ramelli, and De Silva families over the years.

33 First Post Office
507 E. Main St.
In 1861, Ventura’s first postmaster, Vokey A. Simpson, was said to have carried letters in his hat for delivery to residents in what is believed to be the first system of letter carrying in the state. In 1905, local businessmen of the Ventura Improvement Company raised the capital to build this structure for use as a post office at a cost of $20,000. Marks on the floors of the store show where the post office counter was once located. (Proceed west on Main Street)

34 Bank of Italy
594 E. Main St.
Built in the popular Beaux-Arts style (Italian Renaissance Revival), this 1924 two-story bank was built for John Lagunamarso, Sr. and designed by a top Los Angeles architectural firm, Morgan, Wall and Clements. Marble bas-relief representing a number of architectural styles from the Spanish "Churrigueresque" style. (Proceed east on Santa Clara Street)

35 El Jardin Patio*
451-461 E. Main St.
The first movement to create a shopping environment began in Southern California in the 1920s – it was a movement that would end the elaborate shopping malls of today. Built in 1925, El Jardin Patio was designed by the Los Angeles architectural firm of Weber, Stauton, and Spaulding. (Proceed across Santa Clara Street)

36 Norton Ranch House
71 N. Palm St.
This 1910 Craftsman-style house once stood on a 40-acre walnut farm on Beisler Blvd. It was moved to this location, restored in 1990 and designated a historic landmark in 1998. This house was linked to the prominent Chaney, Callens, Vanoni, Ramelli, and De Silva families over the years.

37 Hartman Residence
73 N. Palm St.
Mr. Fredelin Hartman, a native of Bavaria, Germany, operated a profitable brewery for many years on this site. He built this Craftsman-style home for his family in 1911. Gayle Kieran was the prominent Chaney, Callens, Vanoni, Ramelli, and De Silva families over the years.